



**THE TOWN OF KENNETH CITY, FLORIDA
PUBLIC NOTICE
COUNCIL MEETING**

The Council of the Town of Kenneth City will meet at Community Hall, located 4600 58th Street North, Kenneth City, Florida to discuss the agenda items of Town business listed at the time indicated below.

FACE MASKS REQUIRED FOR ENTRY AND MUST BE WORN AT ALL TIMES IN THE BUILDING. INDOOR SEATING LIMITED TO 25 DUE TO CDC GUIDELINES.

6:30 P.M.

July 22, 2020

Community Hall

- A. Call to Order
- B. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance
- C. Roll Call
- D. Consent Agenda for July
 - 1. Minutes (*June 10, 2020*)
 - 2. Revenue/Expenditure Report (to follow)
 - 3. Building Department Report
 - 4. Police Department Report (to follow)
 - 5. Fire Department Report
 - 6. Board Appointment
 - a. Planning and Zoning Board
 - i. Ana Cabezas, to replace Todd Croley Baird
- E. Open Forum (limited to 3 minutes)
Please sign-in at the podium, listing your name, address and email
- F. Old Business
 - 1. Second and Final Reading of Ordinance 2020-654; amending Chapter 54 - Traffic and Vehicles
- G. New Business
 - 1. Resolution 2020-05, Amending the Uniform Fine Schedule for Traffic & Vehicle Violations
 - 2. Distribution of FY 2018-2019 Audit, presentation by Paul Crawford, Auditor
- H. Comments
 - Mayor/Council/Attorney/Manager/Clerk
- I. Adjournment

www.kennethcityfl.org

Any person who decides to appeal any decision of the Town Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting will need a record of the proceedings and for such purposes may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. The law does not require the Town Clerk to transcribe verbatim minutes; therefore, the applicant must make the necessary arrangements with a private reporting firm and bear the resulting expense. In accordance with the Americans with Disability Act and F.S. 286.26; any person with a disability requiring reasonable accommodation in order to participate in this meeting should call 727-498-8948 or fax a written request to 727-498-8841.

Posted July 17, 2020

Next meeting- Workshop to immediately follow at Community Hall

Consent Agenda

For July

- Minutes – Council Meeting (6/10/20)
- Revenue/Expenditure Report
- Building Department Report
- Police Department Report
- Fire Department Report
- Planning & Zoning Board
 - Appointment Ana Cabezas



Council Meeting Minutes

Wednesday, June 10, 2020

Call to Order, Meeting called to order at 6:30 pm

Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance, Manager Campbell

Roll Call

Councilmembers Hauff, Noble, Zemaitis, Vice-Mayor Howell, Mayor Dudley, Attorney Mora, and Manager Campbell

Recognition of Council Members & Council Appointment

Welcome to Councilmembers Noble and Zemaitis

Recognize former Councilmembers Troup and Roberts for their service with a plaque.

Vice-Mayor Appointment

Mayor Dudley suggested keeping Robert Howell as Vice-Mayor

Motion: Councilmember Zemaitis
Second: Councilmember Hauff
All in favor Motion approved

Agenda for June

Motion: Councilmember Hauff
Second: Councilmember Noble
All in favor Motion approved

Recognition of KCPD for recent Florida Law Enforcement Accreditation accomplishment

Chief Riley spoke about the process of receiving the accreditation, which started four years ago. In February, the KCPD was awarded full accreditation by the Florida Commission of Accreditation. It is a 3- year cycle. There are 400 Police Agencies across the State of Florida and only one-third of them are accredited. It establishes best practices and standards for how Law Enforcement Agencies should be conducting themselves. There are 239 standards that need to be adhered to. There are 18,000 Law Enforcement Agencies across the United States and three-quarters of them have 25

Officers or less, thus the size of Kenneth City is the norm. It is a huge accomplishment.

Chief Riley also distributed last year's Annual Report to the Council.

Representative Jennifer Webb, House District 69, COVID-19 and Legislative Update

Representative Webb gave an overview of the past legislative session and a COVID-19 update. The State currently rolled out Stage 2 of the reopening. For those who are struggling financially Pinellas County has a program, Pinellas Cares. It helps families and small businesses pay their bills. Up to \$3,000 is available for families and up to \$5,000 for businesses. Families can text COVIDCARES to 898211 to get the process started. If you or your family have lost a job or income due to impacts from the pandemic, you may qualify for one-time financial assistance to pay for basic expenses such as rent. Landlords can share this information with their tenants. For Employers, DEO has a program where, if you bring back workers to 60-90% of their Pre-COVID hours DEO will pay part of their salary and the employer the other part.

Rep Webb was able to secure 2.35 million dollars in projects for her district. These were predominantly projects to improve wastewater and stormwater infrastructure. Rep Webb was able to put forward six substantive bills. Four of the bills were passed. Two other bills that passed were an increase in pay for teachers and a water quality bill

The Governor will be reviewing the budget, shortly. Rep Webb doesn't anticipate that the money she was able to secure in the last session will be there for projects going forward.

Open Forum

- Barbara Roberts, 6412 44th Ave North requested copy of the Town Clerk's plan to complete her certification.

New Business

First Reading of Ordinance 2020-654, amending Chapter 54- Traffic & Vehicles

Attorney Mora stated this ordinance has been in the works for over two years.

The entire chapter has been amended from the generic elements to the more specific elements. This is the first reading, which at this point can be revised and edited.

One of the challenges of this redraft was the difference between vehicles, i.e. cars, trucks and recreational vehicles. The ordinance goes through the general parking prohibitions and permissions, then it goes into the regulations of vehicles, then more narrowly into the regulations pertaining to recreational vehicles.

Some of the more salient points based on the discussion of the Council were the prohibited vehicles definition, which talks about a whole class of vehicles.

The biggest part of this discussion centered around a sense in the community that there is not enough space for all the different kinds of vehicles to park, while taking into account the safety, health, and welfare of the community.

Based on the input of this Council and studies that were done with emergency vehicles. The consensus was to allow for street parking, unless otherwise posted.

In Chapter 54-111C- Explicit provision for parking permitted in residential roadways, unless otherwise posted by signage. There was an email distributed by Attorney Mora clarifying language in

Chapter 54-110. It should say that no person shall, stop, stand or park a vehicle, on the grass or soil in the front or side yard of a residential property.

Chapter 54, Sub 11, no person shall, stop, stand or park a vehicle on the roadway in front of a residential property, when displaced by a recreational vehicle as defined in this chapter. This was one edit to make clear it is not ok to park on the grass. If you are parking a recreational vehicle on your driveway, in addition to all the other restrictions pertaining to them, you can't do so if it requires your personal vehicles to be parked in the road.

There are provisions for the expansion of a driveway or placement of driveways in other parts of the lot. The current code favors expansion over displacement.

The following needs to be reconciling by the Council.

Ch. 54- 113d prohibits the location of a vehicle in disrepair, in the rear of a residential lot.

Ch 54- 174b allows for a recreation vehicle in disrepair to be placed in the rear yard for a limited time period.

The more salient items are that recreational vehicles must be parked on an approved surface. It shouldn't be on roadway and once on a driveway, not displacing requisite parking for vehicles. The preference is that a recreational vehicle be accommodated within the driveway, or rear yard. If it can't be in either of those places, the expansion of the front driveway or a provision for an approved surface on the side year, subject to side setbacks.

There will be a first reading and then a second reading, which will be advertised. In addition to this Ordinance it will be accompanied by a Resolution with a fine schedule. There is a plan for the collection of fines for Parking Violations, with the assistance of the Clerk of the Courts.

Motion: Vice-Mayor Howell
Second: Councilmember Noble

Vice-Mayor Howell asked if anything had changed since the previous discussions. Attorney Mora stated the substance is still the same.

Manager Campbell stated that some signage will need to be updated, the Town is working with a traffic engineer to accomplish that. While parking was being reviewed, it was determined that Seritage Development, owner of the Kmart property has already posted signs and is having unauthorized vehicles towed.

Councilmember Zemaitis questioned whether a pre-existing dirt driveway will need to be upgraded. She also wanted clarification on the 23 feet or 10,000 pounds and 30 feet total for vehicles.

Manager Campbell and Attorney Mora stated that after new regulations are passed there would be a grace period for the existing driveway to be updated to code. There would need to be an education process for the residents.

There was a discussion among Council to determination if a vehicle is in the state of disrepair, can it be placed in the temporary location for a limited time period.

The consensus was it can be for a period of 60 days.

There also was discussion about a trailer, not a recreation vehicle being parked in the public right away, or in the front, side or rear yards.

The Consensus was that vehicles loading, unloading or providing services would be allowed to park temporarily on unapproved services, i.e. grass, Tradesman's vehicles

Open Forum

Teresa Zemaitis, 5201 57th St N was concerned about parking in the curve on 49th Ave. She asked that the line of sight be kept in mind while determining parking/no parking areas.

The Council was polled
All in favor: First reading of Chapter 54 was approved

Mayor/Council/Attorney/Manager/Clerk

Councilmember commented on the need to streamline communication within the Town, i.e. the websites and Facebook pages. Councilmember Zemaitis agreed.
Manager Campbell stated one on one meetings could be arranged.

Attorney Mora explained the process of getting an item on an agenda. There should be consensus from the Council to add an item to the agenda.

Mayor Dudley asked if changing the meetings from 6:30 to 6:00 would work for the new Council. Councilmember Zemaitis stated it would conflict with her work schedule.

Manager Campbell distributed a property and yard brochure. This a Town wide education initiative. Included in his manager update was a Capital improvement update, also a feasibility study regarding a roundabout for 46 Ave and 58th Street. This can be discussed at a workshop.

Councilmember Noble asked what benefit it would be to the Town.
Manager Campbell stated it takes away the light, improves traffic flow and slows vehicles down.

Attorney Mora thanked everyone for their patience and understanding during these months of COVID- 19.

The legislature has been under pressure to address the fireworks issue. The legislative landscape has changed if we don't do anything, nothing changes. Code is silent for fireworks in Kenneth City, which otherwise are allowed on specific days of the year.

Manager Campbell stated the Town would like to change the observed 4th of July holiday to Friday instead of Monday, due to the 4th of July parade being cancelled.
Council gave consensus to change the observed 4th of July Holiday from Monday July 6th to Friday July 3rd.

Adjournment

Motion: Vice-Mayor Howell
Second: Councilmember Hautt

Meeting adjourned at **8:10 p.m.**

Respectfully submitted,
Cindy M. Matson, Town Clerk



TOWN OF KENNETH CITY

A SAFE, FRIENDLY SMALL TOWN

6000 54th Avenue North - Kenneth City, Florida 33709

Phone : (727) 498-8948 | Fax : (727) 498 - 8841

town57@kennethcityfl.org | www.kennethcityfl.org

TO: TOWN CLERK

From: Gary Strait, Plans Examiner


Subject: Permits & Fees For: **June 2020**

Number of Permits Issued: **24**

Total Fees Collected: **\$ 2020.13**

The Following Permits Were Issued:

Building	8
Electric	7
Mechanical	1
Plumbing	3
Engineering	3
Landscaping	2
Gas	0
Fire	0
Well Drill	0

 7/1/20

2020

JUNE

DATE	ADDRESS	APPLICANT	OWNER	PERMIT #	TYPE	DESCRIPTION	ISSUE DA	VALUATION	PLAN RE	TIF	DCA/DBPPT & E FEE	PERMIT F	TOTAL
06/02/20	4823 58TH WAY	HOMEOWNER	BARNOS	12071	ENG	FENCE REPLACEMENT	06/02/20	\$2,500.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$4.00	\$50.00	\$59.00
06/02/20	4143 56TH ST #900	AVERSA CONSTRUCTION	MCCAGUE	12072	BLDG	DOOR REPLACEMENT	06/02/20	\$600.00	\$20.00	\$0.00	\$4.00	\$40.00	\$66.00
06/03/20	6427 43RD AVE	MIDWAY SERVICES	PYLE	12073	ELEC	PANEL C/O	06/03/20	\$2,400.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$4.00	\$40.00	\$46.00
06/08/20	6049 45TH AVE	HOMEOWNER	RECTOR	12074	BLDG	PAVERS	06/08/20	\$2,500.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$4.00	\$50.00	\$59.00
06/10/20	4140 55TH ST #1051	MAX SOLO N PLUMBING	LUCAS	12075	PLBG	PLUMBING FOR WASHIN	06/10/20	\$2,000.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$4.00	\$40.00	\$46.00
06/11/20	5694 46TH AVE	D'ANDREA ELECTRIC	JENTSCH	12076	ELEC	UPGRADE ELEC PANEL	06/11/20	\$1,100.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$4.00	\$40.00	\$46.00
06/15/20	5524 49TH AVE	HOMEOWNER	HARRIS	12077	LAND	TREE REMOVAL	06/15/20	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00
06/16/20	4140 55H ST #1113	M&K ELECTRIC	CLEARWATER	12078	ELEC	ELEC PANEL REPLACEM	06/16/20	\$2,200.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$4.00	\$40.00	\$46.00
06/16/20	5761 53RD AVE	HOMEOWNER	ATKINSON	12079	ENG	PAVER DRIVEWAY AND	06/16/20	\$3,500.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$4.00	\$55.00	\$64.00
06/17/20	5893 48TH AVE	POSITRICITY	WOLFE	12080	ELEC	SPA DISCONNECT	06/17/20	\$3,683.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$4.00	\$40.00	\$46.00
06/18/20	4992 LAKE CHARLES	JOE COOL HOME SERVICES	WARNER	12081	MECH	A/C CHANGEOUT	06/18/20	\$7,450.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$4.00	\$40.00	\$46.00
06/18/20	5892 50TH AVE	SPANGLER ROOFING	FORD	12082	BLDG	ROOF REPLACEMENT	06/18/20	\$8,500.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$4.00	\$50.00	\$89.00
06/18/20	4725 LAKE CHARLES	ABOVE ALL ROOFING	WAGNER	12083	BLDG	ROOF REPLACEMENT	06/18/20	\$7,000.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$4.00	\$70.00	\$79.00
06/19/20	5671 42ND AVE	RED ROYAL ELECTRIC	GRUENEWALI	12804	ELEC	GENERATOR SWITCH	06/19/20	\$1,128.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$4.00	\$40.00	\$46.00
06/22/20	4777 60TH WAY	R J OWENS ROOFING	MURRAY	12805	BLDG	ROOF REPLACEMENT	06/22/20	\$9,850.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$4.00	\$50.00	\$94.00
06/23/20	6098 44TH AVE	HOMEOWNER	SALY	12086	LAND	TREE REMOVAL	06/23/20	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00
06/25/20	6212 43RD AVE	POOL PERFECTION	KOHLER	12087	BLDG	IN GROUND POOL	06/25/20	\$49,070.00	\$182.50	\$0.00	\$13.69	\$285.00	\$491.19
06/25/20	6212 43RD AVE	POOL PERFECTION	KOHLER	12087	PLBG	IN GROUND POOL	06/25/20	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$40.00	\$40.00
06/25/20	6212 43RD AVE	HAWKINS SERVICE	KOHLER	12087	ELEC	IN GROUND POOL	06/25/20	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$40.00	\$40.00
06/26/20	5600 46TH AVE	HOMEOWNER	RAMSEY	12088	ENG	FENCE REPLACEMENT	06/26/20	\$1,800.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$4.00	\$50.00	\$54.00
06/29/20	5114 61ST LN	KAM ROOFING SERVICES	MEEKS	12089	BLDG	ROOF REPLACEMENT	06/29/20	\$7,300.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$4.00	\$75.00	\$84.00
06/30/20	5862 52ND AVE	LIGHTNING POOLS	STARLING	12090	BLDG	IN GROUND POOL	06/30/20	\$37,600.00	\$152.50	\$0.00	\$11.44	\$225.00	\$398.94
06/30/20	5862 52ND AVE	LIGHTNING POOLS	STARLING	12090	PLBG	IN GROUND POOL	06/30/20	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$40.00	\$40.00
06/30/20	5862 52ND AVE	ALL COUNTY ELECTRIC	STARLING	12090	ELEC	IN GROUND POOL	06/30/20	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$40.00	\$40.00
								\$355.00			\$89.13	\$1,500.00	\$2,020.13



City of
PINELLAS PARK, FLORIDA

PINELLAS PARK FIRE DEPARTMENT
 11350 43RD STREET NORTH, CLEARWATER, FL 33762
 TEL 727-369-5803, FAX 727-369-5785

FIRE DEPARTMENT REPORT
 KENNETH CITY COUNCIL MEETING
 July 22, 2020

For the month of June 2020, the Fire, EMS and Life Safety activities break down as follows:

RESPONSES IN KENNETH CITY			
TYPE OF RESPONSE	MONTH	YEAR TO DATE	
	June	2020	2019
MEDICAL	121	559	670
VEHICLE COLLISION	2	19	20
FIRE RELATED CALLS	7	49	62
TOTAL RESPONSES	130	627	752

ENGINE 16 RESPONSES									
TYPE OF RESPONSE	IN KENNETH CITY			OUTSIDE KENNETH CITY			TOTAL RESPONSES		
	MONTH	YEAR TO DATE		MONTH	YEAR TO DATE		MONTH	YEAR TO DATE	
	June	2020	2019	June	2020	2019	June	2020	2019
MEDICAL	43	180	191	66	321	510	109	501	701
VEHICLE COLLISION	1	12	11	17	97	138	18	109	149
FIRE RELATED CALLS	6	40	49	14	130	185	20	194	265
TOTAL RESPONSES	50	232	251	97	548	833	147	804	1,115

LIFE SAFETY MANAGEMENT SERVICES			
TYPE OF SERVICE PERFORMED	MONTH	YEAR TO DATE	
	June	2020	2019
INSPECTIONS	78	171	29
FALSE ALARMS	2	21	20
PLANS REVIEW	0	6	1
SMOKE ALARMS INSTALLED	0	5	6
PUBLIC EDUCATION PROGRAMS	0	0	0
PROGRAM ATTENDANCE	0	0	0

Respectfully submitted,

Brett Schlatterer, Fire Chief



Town of Kenneth City
 6000 54th Avenue North
 Kenneth City, FL 33709
 727.498.8948

town57@kennethcityfl.org www.kennethcityfl.govoffice2.com

APPLICATION TO SERVE ON TOWN BOARDS/COMMITTEES

*All Positions are Voluntary**

Name Ana Cabezas Home Phone _____
 Address 5063 57th St. N. Kenneth City, FL 33709
 Email Address anacabezas727@gmail.com Cell Phone 727-687-2322
 Present Occupation (or if retired, last) Teacher @ PTC

- Are you a registered voter? Yes No
- Have you been a Town resident for six months or longer? Yes No
- Are you employed by the Town? Yes No
- Do you presently serve on a Town Board or Committee? Yes No
- Do you hold a public office? Yes No

Please check each of the Boards and/or Committees on which you are interested in serving:

- Board of Adjustment**
 - Planning & Zoning Board**
 - Charter Review Committee
 - Special Events Committee
- (**Financial disclosure forms are required upon appointment to the Board of Adjustment or the Planning & Zoning Board)
- wherever I'm needed.*

Available for:

Daytime Meetings? Yes No Evening Meetings? Yes No

Briefly explain why you would like to serve on the Board and/or Committee you have expressed interest in on this application.


I am genuinely interested in becoming more involved in local civic opportunities. I'd like to learn more - take a closer look.

If you have any experience that you think would be beneficial for this Board and/or Committee, please explain.

I have experience serving on multiple committees both locally and abroad. I currently serve on the Pinellas County Joint Child Care Advisory Board and am a teacher at a Career/Technical College.

****I understand that the Town of Kenneth City is authorized to make any investigations of my background, including a criminal history background check and drug screening if deemed necessary.***


Signature


Date

If you would like to submit a letter, resume or any other documentation, please attach it to this application.

Submit your completed application to the Town Clerk at Town Hall.

All applications will be kept on file for a period of one (1) year and submitted to the appropriate personnel when vacancies occur.

ORDINANCE NO. 2020-654

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF KENNETH CITY, FLORIDA AMENDING CHAPTER 54 - TRAFFIC AND VEHICLES, IN ITS ENTIRETY; AMENDING DEFINITIONS RELATED TO TRAFFIC AND VEHICLES; REGULATING PROHIBITED VEHICLES; REGULATING PARKING, STOPPING, AND STANDING FOR VEHICLES; REGULATING TYPE AND SIZE OF PARTICULAR VEHICLES; AMENDING SPECIAL EVENT PERMITS; REGULATING RECREATIONAL VEHICLES; REGULATING PARKING OF RECREATIONAL VEHICLES; PROVIDING FOR CIVIL PENALTIES OF VIOLATIONS; CORRECTING SCRIVENER'S ERRORS; CORRECTING GRAMMATICAL ERRORS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE

WHEREAS, the Legislature of the State of Florida has, in Chapter 166 - Municipalities, Florida Statutes, conferred upon local governments the authority to adopt regulations designed to promote the public health, safety, and general welfare of its citizenry; and

WHEREAS, Chapter 316, Florida Statutes, known as the Florida Uniform Traffic Control Law, gives the Town authority to regulate vehicles, stopping, standing, parking, and enforcement of same within the Town's jurisdiction; and

WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Kenneth City has determined that it is in the public interest to update and amend Chapter 54 – Traffic and Vehicles, of the Town Code and all amendments herewith are in accordance with the health, safety, and welfare of the residents, business operators, and visitors of the Town of Kenneth City; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Town Council of The Town of Kenneth City, Florida as follows:

- SECTION 1.** Recitals. The above recitals are hereby adopted as the legislative and administrative finding of facts of the Town Council.
- SECTION 2.** Full Amendment. The Town of Kenneth City Code of Ordinances, Chapter 54, Traffic and Vehicles, is hereby amended in the matter set forth in Exhibit A.
- SECTION 3.** Applicability. For the purposes of jurisdictional applicability, this ordinance shall apply in the Town of Kenneth City, Florida.
- SECTION 4.** Inclusion in the Code of Ordinances. It is the intent of the Town Council that the provisions of this ordinance shall become and be made a part of the Town of Kenneth City Code of Ordinances, and that the sections of this ordinance may be renumbered or re-lettered and the word “ordinance” may be changed to “section,” “article,” “regulation,” or such other appropriate

word or phrase in order to accomplish such intentions.

SECTION 5. Severability. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is, for any reason, declared by the courts to be unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity of the ordinance as a whole, or any part thereof, other than the part so declared.

SECTION 6. Effective Date. This ordinance shall take effect immediately upon final passage and adoption.

PASSED on first reading **on June 10, 2020**, by the Town Council of the Town of Kenneth City, Florida.

PASSED AND ADOPTED ON SECOND AND FINAL READING on the ____ day of _____, 2020, by the Town Council of the Town of Kenneth City, Florida.

Wanda Dudley
Mayor

ATTEST:

Cindy McCarthy, Town Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Randy Mora, Town Attorney

EXHIBIT A

Chapter 54 - TRAFFIC AND VEHICLES

ARTCILE I. - GENERAL

ARTICLE II. - SPEED LIMITS

Sec. 54-1 – Adoption of state Uniform Traffic Control law

The state uniform traffic control law, F.S. ch. 316, regulating the movement of all vehicular, pedestrian and all other traffic and establishing rules of the road applicable thereto in the ~~€~~Town and providing for the administration and enforcement thereof is adopted by reference, together with all subsequent legislative amendments to such law, as the traffic ordinance of the ~~€~~Town, except as specifically amended or altered in this chapter.

Sec. 54-2 – Penalties

Any person who shall violate any of the provisions of this chapter for which a penalty is not otherwise specifically provided, shall be considered guilty of an infraction and subject to the penalty as provided for by F.S. chs. 316 and 318, or a civil penalty as provided for in the Fine Schedule set by resolution of the Town Council and in accordance with Section 1-15 of the Town's Code.

Secs. 54-3 – 54-35. – Reserved

DIVISION 1. - GENERALLY

Sec. 54-36 {Speed limits.}

In accordance with the uniform traffic law adopted in Section 54-1, the speed limits shall align with those prescribed and posted by the Florida Department of Transportation and the County, as within their respective jurisdictions. The Town Manager is authorized to modify speed limits on roadways within the Town's jurisdiction when in his or her judgment a speed limit should be increased or reduced without harm to the public. In such cases appropriate speed limit signs shall be erected in order to give notice thereof. Absent a posting, local roads and collector roads shall abide by the Florida Department of Transportation and Institute of Transportation Engineer Standards.

Secs. 54-37—54-109. - Reserved.

DIVISION 2. - PARKING, STANDING AND STOPPING

Sec. 54-110. - Definitions.

[The following words, terms, and phrases, when used in this division, shall have the meanings ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning:]

Access aisle means an area beside or adjacent to a designated disabled parking space, which is striped diagonally to designate it as a no-parking zone, and which is reserved for the temporary exclusive use of persons who have disability parking permits or license plates and who require extra space to deploy a mobile device, lift, or ramp in order to exit from or enter a vehicle parked in an adjacent designated disabled parking space.

Authorized vehicle means a vehicle that has been designated by a town, county, state or other government as authorized to park within a reserved parking space, tow-away zone.

Civil penalty means an amount of money imposed by this article for a violation, which is deemed to be a parking infraction. A violation of this Chapter shall result in a civil penalty, which shall be punishable as provided for in the Fine Schedule set by resolution of the Town Council and in accordance with Section 1-15 of the Town's Code.

Clerk means tTown clerk for the Town of Kenneth City, Florida.

Crosswalk means:

(~~1~~a) That part of a roadway at an intersection including within the connections of the lateral lines of the sidewalks on opposite sides of the highway, measured from the curbs or in the absence of curbs, from the edge of the traversable roadway.

(~~2~~b) Any portion of a roadway at an intersection or elsewhere distinctly indicated for pedestrian crossing by lines or other markings on the surface.

Designated disabled parking space means any parking space prominently outlined with blue paint and posted with a permanent above-ground sign of a color and design approved by the Florida Department of Transportation, which is placed on or at a distance of 84 inches above the ground to the bottom of the sign, and which bears the international symbol and the caption "PARKING BY DISABLED PERMIT ONLY".

Disabled person means any person who is currently certified to have any of the disabilities listed in F.S. § 320.0848, or any amended or successor statutes; and who has been issued a disabled parking permit or license plate pursuant to F.S. §§ 316.1954, 320.084, 320.0842, 320.0845, or 320.0848, or any amended or successor statute.

Driveway means a pathway on residential or commercial property which is designed and intended to be used to park motor vehicles or other vehicles generally used to travel on public

roads or streets. For purposes of this section a driveway shall be constructed of concrete, asphalt, rock pavers, material not able to be penetrated by water, or materials such as stone, rock, shale, gravel, shell, or similar material which permeates water into the underlying natural surface and which is properly contained to prevent the composition materials from being washed away.

Law enforcement officer or police officer means a certified fulltime, part-time, or auxiliary police officer of the Town of Kenneth City, or ~~the Sheriff of Pinellas County or his designated deputies~~ any other law enforcement agency.

Lot Line, property line, or property lot line means the lines defining the boundaries along the perimeter of a property, as set forth in a survey of record.

Median strip means that area lying in the middle of and dividing a street or right-of-way in two halves or dividing two streets.

Momentarily means a length of time not to exceed fifteen minutes, or such other length of time as deemed reasonable under the circumstances by a law enforcement officer.

Official traffic control device means any sign, signal, marking or device placed or erected by the ~~€~~Town, county or by authority of any other public body or official having jurisdiction for the purpose of regulation, warning, or guiding traffic or for regulating parking areas located on property owned or leased by the ~~€~~Town.

Official traffic control signal means any device, whether manually, electronically, or mechanically operated, by which traffic is alternatively directed to stop and permitted to proceed.

Owner means a person who holds the legal title to a vehicle, or, in the event a vehicle is the subject of an agreement for the conditional sale or lease thereof with the right of purchase upon performance of the conditions stated in the agreement and with immediate right of possession vested in the conditional vendee or lessee, or in the event a mortgagor of the vehicle is entitled to possession, then such conditional vendee or lessee, or mortgagor shall be deemed the owner, for purposes of this article.

Park or parking means the standing of a vehicle, whether occupied or not, otherwise than temporarily, for the purpose of and while actually engaged in loading or unloading merchandise or passengers as may be permitted by law or under this article.

Parking enforcement specialist means a person employed or appointed by the police department to enforce parking regulations who has successfully completed a training program established and approved by the criminal justice standards and training commission for parking enforcement specialists.

Parking ticket means an official form used by a ~~police~~ law enforcement officer, ~~sheriff~~ or parking enforcement specialist to notify the owner of a vehicle that said vehicle is parked, stopped, or standing in violation of the provisions of this article.

Parkway means that area lying between a residential property line and the edge of pavement, inclusive of sidewalks and the curbing of a street.

Person means any natural person, firm, partnership, association, or corporation.

Prohibited vehicles and equipment means and includes, but shall not be limited to, any individual truck, trailer or stretched or extended automobile or sport utility vehicle in excess of 23 feet, or any semi-trailer, tractor trailer combination, or truck tractor as defined in F.S. 320.01(11), or any step van, cube van, box truck, flatbed truck, tow truck, wrecker, moving van, bus, or any construction, landscaping, or land clearing equipment. The term also includes any vehicle used as a platform for a derrick, hoist, crane, compressor, tanks, or similar equipment, or as a means of transporting or storing a prohibited vehicle. "Construction, landscaping, or land clearing equipment," as used in this section shall include, but not be limited to, any front loader, bull dozer, dragline, crane, or similar vehicle, or any tar pot, concrete mixer, trencher, stump grinder, brush shredder, debris trailer, or similar equipment designed to be towed behind a motorized vehicle.

Reserved parking space, tow-away zone means a parking area located on property owned or leased by the Town which has been designated as "reserved parking space, tow-away zone" under procedures established by the chief of police from which an unauthorized vehicle may be removed at the owner's expense.

Roadway means that portion of a highway or road improved, designated, or ordinarily used for vehicular travel, exclusive of the berm or shoulder. In the event a highway or road includes two or more separate roadways the term "roadway" as used herein shall refer to any such roadway separately, but not to all such roadways collectively.

Sidewalk means that portion of a roadway between the curb line or the lateral line, of a roadway and the adjacent property lines, intended for use by pedestrians.

Stop, stopping, Sstand or standing means the halting of a vehicle, even momentarily, whether occupied or not, otherwise than temporarily, for the purpose of, and while actually engaged in, receiving or discharging passengers, when necessary to avoid conflict with other traffic, or to comply with the directions of a law enforcement or official traffic control device or signal, as may be permitted by law or under this article.

~~Stop or stopping means when prohibited, any halting, even momentarily, of a vehicle, whether occupied or not, except when necessary to avoid conflict with other traffic or to comply with the directions of a law enforcement or police officer or official traffic control device or signal.~~

Street or highway means the entire width between the boundary lines of every way or place of whatever nature when any part thereof is open to the use of the public for purposes of vehicular traffic.

Town means the Town of Kenneth City, Florida.

Town manager or manager means the Town Manager of the Town of Kenneth City, Florida, who serves as the chief administrative officer of the €Town.

Unauthorized vehicle means a vehicle, which has not been designated by the €Town, county, state, or other government as authorized to park within a reserved parking space, tow-away zone pursuant to procedures established by the chief of police.

Vehicle means any device in, upon, or by which any person or property is or may be transported or drawn upon a highway roadway, except devices moved by human power or used exclusively upon stationary rails or tracks.

Sec. 54-111. - Stopping, standing, and parking in specified locations.

Within the incorporated limits of the €Town, except when necessary to avoid conflict with other traffic, or in compliance with law or the directions of a police or law enforcement officer or official traffic control device, no person shall:

(1a) Stop, stand, or park a vehicle:

(a1) On a sidewalk;

(b2) Within an intersection;

(c3) On a crosswalk;

(d4) Between a safety zone and the adjacent curb;

(e5) Alongside or opposite any street excavation or construction when stopping, standing or parking would obstruct traffic;

(f6) On any bridge or other elevated structure upon a roadway;

(g7) On any vacant lot unless the owner of the vehicle has the expressed permission from the owner of the property;

(h8) On a bicycle path; and

(i9) At any place where an official traffic control device or posted signage prohibits stopping or parking, unless for a specified or designated event approved by the Town Manager, or his or her designee;:

(j10) On the grass or soil in the front or side yard of a residential property; or

(11) On the roadway in front of a residential property, when displaced by a recreational vehicle as defined in this Chapter, occupying the space in the driveway apportioned for requisite vehicle parking.

(2b) Stand or park a vehicle, whether occupied or not, except momentarily, to pick up or discharge a passenger or passengers in any of the following locations:

(a1) In front of or directly opposite a public or private driveway;

(2) In front of a mailbox;

(b3) Within 15 feet of a fire hydrant;

(c4) Within 20 feet of a crosswalk at an intersection;

(d5) Within 30 feet upon the approach to any flashing signal, stop sign, or official traffic control signal located at the side of a roadway;

(e 6) On an exclusive bicycle lane;

(f 7) On any median strip or parkway; or

(g 8) At any place where an official traffic control device or posted signage prohibits stopping or parking, unless for a specified or designated event approved by the Town Manager, or his or her designee.

(3c) Parking is permitted in the roadway of the Town's residential districts, unless otherwise posted by signage authorized by the Town Manager or his or her designee. Except as otherwise provided in this article, every vehicle stopped or parked upon a two-way roadway shall be stopped or parked with the right-hand wheels parallel to and within 12 inches of the right-hand curb or edge of the roadway.

(4d) No person shall park any vehicle upon a public highway, roadway, or street, upon a public or private parking lot, or upon private property for the principal purpose of displaying the vehicle for sale. Nothing in this section shall prohibit a person from parking his or her own vehicle on any real property, which the person owns for the principal purpose of sale of the vehicle. Any vehicle parked in violation of this section 24 hours after a previous violation and written notice shall be subject to removal of the vehicle at the owner's expense.

(5e) No person shall permit any real property, whether improved or unimproved, to be used for the purpose of the public parking of vehicles, recreational vehicles, boats, or utility trailers for which any form of compensation is paid or promised for such parking.

(6f) Parking of trailers accommodating tools, equipment, or materials actually used in connection with the construction of a structure for which building permits have been issued by the building official shall be permitted; provided that any such trailer shall be immediately removed upon the substantial completion of such structure.

~~(7) Parking of any boat trailer or utility trailer shall not be permitted on any landing, public property or street.~~

Sec. 54-112. - All-night parking prohibited in certain areas.

There shall be no privately-owned vehicle parked overnight on the Town's property, without written approval by the Town Manager or his or her designee.

Sec. 54-113. – Parking regulations concerning vehicle size and condition of trucks and similar vehicles regulated; penalty for violation of section.

(a) It shall be unlawful for any person or persons to park a trailer (nonrecreational), tractor, semitrailer, or tractor-trailer combination, or any other vehicle that does not otherwise meet the definition of vehicle or recreation vehicle as defined in this Chapter, on any public right-of-way within the Town or in the front, side and rear yard of premises in the Town zoned residential (single- and multiple-family dwelling districts), regardless of surface, except for such periods of time as may be reasonably necessary for loading, unloading, or providing services at the premises where parked. Further, any tractor or tractor-trailer combination shall

not be parked on any commercial property overnight, with the exception of garages or service stations where repairs are being made which may require such vehicle to be held overnight, or duly licensed and established rental companies who rent out such equipment as part of their established business. Prohibited vehicles or equipment may only park at or on residentially zoned premises for the limited purpose of delivering or receiving goods and services at a specific residence.

- (b) ~~One three-quarter ton (or less capacity) truck may park on residential district premises when the vehicle is customarily used by a person or persons for transportation to and from his place of business or employment; and it shall be unlawful to park more than one of such vehicles or one of larger capacity that as provided herein~~ By itself, a single vehicle or recreational vehicle as defined in this Chapter, shall be 23 feet or less in length, and less than 10,000 pounds in overall weight, and shall park on residentially zoned premises in a manner consistent with the restrictions otherwise specified in this Chapter.
- (c) No combination of a vehicle and recreational vehicle parked on a residential property, shall exceed thirty (30) feet in total length. The maximum total length shall be evaluated by the total rated vehicle length, inclusive of the trailer tongue or motor(s).
- (ed) ~~Any truck, trailer, tractor, semi-trailer, or tractor-trailer combination~~ No prohibited vehicle, as defined in this Chapter, which is in a state of disrepair, in an obviously neglected condition, or in a state of incomplete construction shall not be stored or parked on any side, front, or front driveway or rear of a residential lot; however, the same may be stored or parked in the rear of such lot so long as the same is not closer than three feet to any building, structure or property line; so long as the same is not stored for a period exceeding 60 days and the same is so stored for the purpose of repair or other work upon the vehicle.
- ~~(d) Any person or persons violating any provision of this section may be penalized in accordance with the provisions of Section 1-15 of the Town Code, fined up to as much as five hundred dollars (\$500.00) or imprisoned for sixty (60) days, or both such fine and imprisonment as may be determined in the discretion of the judge, and each such day that such violation continued, the same shall be considered a separate offense, punishable as provided herein.~~

Sec. 54-114. - Parking space for certain disabled persons.

- (a) Pursuant to F.S. § 316.1955, or any amended or successor statute, no person shall, stop, stand, or park any vehicle in, or obstruct, any designated disabled parking space on public property, unless such vehicle displays a disabled parking permit or a license plate issued pursuant to F.S. §§ 3316.1954, 320.084, 320.0842, 320.0843, 320.0845, or 320.0848, or any amended or successor statutes, and such vehicle is transporting the person to whom the display permit is issued.
- (b) Any person who is chauffeuring a person who has a disability is allowed, without the need for a disabled parking permit or a special license plate, to stand temporarily in any such parking space, for the purpose of loading or unloading the person who has a disability.

Sec. 54-115. - Civil penalties.

- (a) Any person who parks, stops, or stands a vehicle in violation of this article shall be guilty of a noncriminal violation and shall be assessed a civil penalty and fees as set forth in the Fine Schedule set by resolution of the Town Council and in accordance with ~~in~~ Section 1-15 of the Town's Code.
- (b) Each day any violation occurs or continues shall be a separate offense.

Sec. 54-116. - Enforcement.

- (a) A ~~police~~ law enforcement officer or parking enforcement specialist who discovers a vehicle parked in violation of this article shall issue a parking ticket on a form approved by the chief of police and shall attach such ticket to the vehicle in a conspicuous place. Any person who is issued a parking ticket is deemed to be charged with a ~~noncriminal violation~~ civil penalty and shall comply with the direction on the parking ticket.
- (b) The ~~police~~ law enforcement officer or parking enforcement specialist shall determine the registered owner of the vehicle for which a parking ticket has been issued and shall complete the parking ticket form. The original of the parking ticket form shall be forwarded to the ~~€Town~~ eClerk within five days from the date of the issuance of the parking ticket.
- (c) A ~~police~~ law enforcement officer or parking enforcement specialist who discovers a vehicle parked in violation of this article, which authorizes a vehicle to be towed from the street or right-of-way, is hereby authorized to issue a parking ticket and to have the vehicle towed by a person regularly engaged in the business of transporting vehicles by wrecker or tow truck to recover, remove and store the unauthorized vehicle. Such vehicle shall be removed, transported and stored in such manner as to comply with all statutory requirements, allowing for a lien to attach upon the vehicle for towing, transportation and storage fees pursuant to F.S. § 713.78, or amended or successor statutes.

Sec. 54-117. - Special event and temporary use permits.

- (a) Any person or organization holding a special event within the municipal limits of the Town of Kenneth City and desiring a temporary exemption to the provisions contained herein may apply for a special event or temporary use permit.
- (b) The application for a special events or temporary use permit shall be submitted to the ~~€Town~~ no later than 30 days at least 30 days prior to the event for which the parking exemptions are requested, unless a shorter period is ~~requested by the applicant and~~ approved by the Town Hall ~~police department~~. The application and at a minimum should contain the following:
 - (1) The name and contact information of the individual or entity responsible for the event.
 - (2) A description of the nature of the event.
 - (3) The expected duration and specific location of the event.
 - (4) The expected number of attendees for the event.
 - (5) A description of the area for which the parking permit exemption is requested.

- (6) The specific sections of the ordinance for which a ~~variance~~ a special event or temporary use permit is requested.
- (c) The application for a special event or temporary use permit shall be submitted to ~~the police department~~ Town Hall for review and approval. The application will be evaluated based on the following criteria:
- (1) That the proposed special event or temporary use permit will not unreasonably interfere with or detract from the general public's ability to traverse the streets within the Town of Kenneth City;
 - (2) The proposed special event or temporary use permit will not unreasonably interfere or detract from the promotion of the public health, safety and welfare as it relates to travel on the affected street(s);
 - (3) That the proposed special event or temporary use permit will not entail extraordinary or burdensome expense or police operation by the €Town;
 - (4) That the requested special event permit or temporary use does not coincide with any other special event permit issued or requested of the €Town; ~~and~~
 - (5) The individual or entity has not received more than two such permits within the past 12 months; and
 - (6) Whether the proposed special event will require the use, employment, or additional resources of Town staff.
- (d) Within ten days or as soon as is practicable after the receipt of the application, the €Town shall inform the applicant in writing of the decision to grant or deny a permit. When a permit is issued it will contain the following information:
- (1) The period of time for which the exemption shall be in effect;
 - (2) The specific parking provisions of the parking ordinance which shall be suspended during the duration of the event;
 - (3) The specific areas where the permit exemption will apply; and
 - (4) Any other conditions the Town deems reasonable to effectuate the permit in order to protect the public health, safety, and welfare.
- (e) In the event of a denial, the notification shall include the specific reason for such denial based on the criteria listed above. Any aggrieved person shall have the right to appeal the decision to the €Town eCouncil by filing written notice thereof with the €Town eClerk within ten business days of the date of the notification received from the €Town. At its subsequent regularly scheduled meeting, the €Town eCouncil shall decide whether or not to grant the permit. The €Town eCouncil shall apply the same standards listed above, and the decision of the €Town eCouncil shall be final.
- (f) Only those rules and regulations specified in the notification of the permit shall be exempted during the duration of the permit.
- (g) The €Town mManager shall have the authority to revoke a permit upon a finding of violation with any rule or ordinance or upon good cause shown. The permit holder may appeal such revocation to the €Town eCouncil in accordance with the procedures for appealing a permit denial, and the €Town eCouncil shall have the same powers as in the case of a permit denial.

Secs. 54-118—54-170. - Reserved.

ARTICLE III. - VEHICLES

DIVISION 1. - PARKING AND STORAGE OF RECREATIONAL VEHICLES

Sec. 54-171. - Definitions.

The following words, terms, and phrases, when used in this division, shall have the meanings ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning:

Recreational vehicle means or shall otherwise include:

- (1a) A transportation facility, either self-propelled or designed to be towed by a passenger car or other vehicle, and one that is primarily designed or constructed to provide movable temporary living quarters for recreational purposes, such as travel and camping purposes and for the purpose of carrying miscellaneous personal equipment and a vehicle which is not used primarily for commercial and business purposes. Further, recreational vehicles may consist of trailers, trailer coaches, camping trailers, motor homes, pickup (slide-in) campers, chassis mounts, converted vans, chopped vans, minimotor homes, fifth-wheel trailers designed as a recreational vehicle (not designed for commercial purposes), boats, boat trailers (with or without a mounted boat), and truck caps.
- (2b) Trailers, trailer coaches, and fifth-wheel trailers with integral wheels to make them mobile and which are intended to be towed by passenger cars, station wagons or ~~light~~ pickup trucks or panel trucks or similar vehicles shall be considered recreational vehicles; however, truck trailers of any type shall not be considered as recreational vehicles.
- (3c) ~~A recreational vehicle shall include~~ a camping trailer which is a type of trailer or trailer coach whereby the walls are so constructed as to be collapsible and usually made out of either canvas or similar cloth or some other form of rigid material, such as fiberglass, plastic or metal, the walls of which are collapsed while the vehicle is being towed, and which are raised or unfolded when the vehicle becomes a temporary living facility and when it is not being moved.
- (4d) A pickup (slide-in) camper and truck caps ~~shall be considered recreational vehicles.~~ sSuch vehicles are designed generally to be mounted temporarily or permanently in the bed of a ~~light~~ truck, with the truck having either a single- or double-rear wheels, either with or without an extra vehicle license tag, the wheels of which may be mounted either on the camper chassis or the truck chassis, which campers are capable of being readily demounted from the truck bed.
- (5e) ~~Included in recreational vehicles shall be~~ eChassis mounts, motor homes, and minimotor homes, which are constructed integrally with a truck or motor van chassis and incapable of

being separated therefrom. The truck or motor van chassis may have either single- or double-rear wheels.

- (6f) ~~Included in recreational vehicles are~~ eConverted and chopped vans which are created by altering or changing an existing auto van to convert it into a recreational vehicle.
- (7g) ~~Included in recreational vehicles shall be~~ bBoat trailers on which a boat may be transported and which is generally towed by a passenger car, station wagon, pickup truck, or a mobile recreational facility as defined in this section.
- (8h) ~~Recreational vehicles as defined in this section shall include~~ uUnmounted boats or other aquatic vehicles, whether motorized or human-propelled which have been removed from a trailer or other vehicle.

Sec. 54-172. ~~Penalty for violation of division.~~

~~Any person or entity violating any of the terms and provisions of this division may be punished as provided in section 1-15.~~

Sec. 54-173172 - Prohibited parking and storage of recreational vehicles

- (a) All recreational vehicles, whether individually or in combination with a vehicle shall be parked in a driveway, as defined in Section 54-110, of the Town Code. No parking, displaying, or storing of recreational vehicles, trailers, and/or boats shall be permitted on any grass surface or other unpaved area zoned for any use, unless specifically authorized in this section. Parking within the public right-of-way adjacent to any home shall be prohibited.
- (b) Parking within the public right of way adjacent to any home shall be prohibited. It shall be unlawful to expand an existing driveway for the purpose of parking, displaying, or storing a recreational vehicle without first securing a permit.
- (c) It shall be unlawful to expand an existing driveway for the purpose of parking, displaying or storing a recreational vehicle without first securing a permit. All vehicles and recreational vehicles, whether separate or combined, shall be parked perpendicular to the frontage of the adjacent residence or building connecting to the driveway.
- (d) Recreational vehicles shall not reduce or displace minimum required on-site parking, as otherwise required in this Code. Whether individually or in combination with a vehicle, the number of recreational vehicles permissible within any driveway shall be limited to one unit.

Sec. 54-174173. - Prohibited parking and storage; exceptions.

It shall be unlawful for any person, corporation, or other entity to park or store any recreational vehicle on any lot or parcel of land which is zoned for residential purposes, that is, for either single or multiple residence; provided, however, that such recreational vehicles may be parked or stored under the following conditions:

- (1a) Recreational vehicles may be stored, parked, or placed within any enclosed building or structure which conforms to the then-existing building ordinances of the Town.
- (2b) Recreational vehicles may be placed on any lot or parcel within a residential zone, that is, in the rear of any such building or structure, ~~so long as the vehicles are not closer than three feet to any property lot line.~~
- (3c) Recreational vehicles may be placed on the side of a building or structure, or on a driveway in a residential zone ~~so long as the vehicles are not closer than three feet to any property lot line.~~ No recreational vehicle may block any portion of a sidewalk. No recreational vehicle may be parked on the grass.
- (4d) In the event that recreational vehicles cannot be stored in the manner set forth in subsections (1a), (2b), or (3c), recreational vehicles may be placed on any lot or parcel within a residential zone, that is, in the front of any such building or structure, so long as the vehicles are parked on a driveway as defined in Section 54-110 of the Town Code. ~~and the vehicle is not closer than three feet to any lot line.~~ In the case of a corner lot, this section shall be construed to apply to either frontage.
- (5e) Recreational vehicles may be stored or parked on a lot within a residential zone irrespective of the provisions of subsections (1a), (2b) and (3c) of this section so long as the vehicles are stored or parked for the sole purpose of loading or unloading and when so parked for such purpose, the recreational vehicles may only be parked for a period not to exceed 24 hours.
- (6) ~~Unmounted pickup (slide in) campers, truck caps, or boats may be stored or parked on any property lot within a residential zone, but not closer than three feet to any building or structure or property lot line.~~

Sec. 54-175174. - Prohibited uses.

- (a) Stored or parked recreational vehicles shall not be occupied or used as living quarters. Such vehicles shall not be used for those activities normally conducted in a residence.
- (b) Any recreational vehicle which is in a state of disrepair, in an obviously neglected condition, or in a state of incomplete construction shall ~~not be prohibited from being~~ stored or parked on any side, front, or front driveway of a residential lot; however, the vehicle may be stored or parked in the rear of such lot ~~so long as the same is not closer than three feet to any building, structure or property line;~~ so long as the vehicle is not stored for a period exceeding 60 days, and the vehicle is so stored for the purpose of repair or other work upon the vehicle.

~~Sec. 54-176. – Number of permissible recreational vehicles.~~

~~The number of recreational vehicles, watercraft, or combination thereof, permissible within any driveway shall be limited to two units.~~

Secs. ~~54-177~~175 – 54-250. – Reserved

ARTICLE IV. - TRAFFIC LIGHT SAFETY ACT

Sec. 54-251. - Purpose and intent.

The purpose of this article is to specifically authorize the use of traffic infraction detectors, as permitted by general law as of the effective date of this article or July 1, 2013, whichever occurs later, within the €Town's jurisdictional limits.

Sec. 54-252. - Use of traffic infraction detectors.

The €Town exercises its option under F.S. § 316.0083 as of the effective date of this article or July 1, 2013, whichever occurs later, to use traffic infraction detectors within its jurisdiction to enforce F.S. § 316.074(1) or § 316.075(1)(C), when a driver fails to stop at a traffic signal on streets and highways in the €Town's jurisdiction. The €Town may utilize traffic infraction detectors as a supplemental means of monitoring and assisting law enforcement personnel in the enforcement of compliance with laws related to traffic control signals as permitted and provided for by state law, which are designed to protect and improve the public health, safety, and welfare of the community and thereby reduce accidents, injuries and disruption of traffic associated with such violations.

Sec. 54-253. - Implementation of general law and designation of local hearing officer.

In accordance with the provisions of the Mark Wandall Traffic Safety Act as of the effective date of this article or July 1, 2013, whichever occurs later, the €Town authorizes the implementation of the provisions and requirements of Laws of Fla. chs. 2010-80 and 2013-15. Effective July 1, 2013, the €Town shall utilize a special magistrate or code enforcement board as its local hearing officer, either independently or via interlocal agreement and to be appointed or designated by resolution of the €Town eCouncil, as permitted and defined by Laws of Fla. ch. 2013-15, in accordance with the provisions of the Mark Wandall Traffic Safety Act.

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-05

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF KENNETH CITY, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE UNIFORM FINE SCHEDULE FOR TRAFFIC AND VEHICLE VIOLATIONS OF CHAPTER 54 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE TOWN OF KENNETH CITY; PROVIDING FOR CIRCULATION TO TOWN DEPARTMENTS; PROVIDING FOR FUTURE REVISION AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the Town's Code of Ordinances establishes various restrictions and regulations with regards to traffic and parking within the Town; and

WHEREAS, Section 1-15 of the Town's Code provides the general penalty for a violation of the Code, where no specific penalty is identified in the Town's Code, shall be by a fine not exceeding \$500.00 or imprisonment for a term not exceeding 60 days, or by both such fine and imprisonment; and

WHEREAS, the Town Council and Town Manager desire to provide more guidance and structure to the discretion afforded to those lawfully authorized officials citing the Town's residents for code violations, when determining the precise fine correlating to individual violations; and

WHEREAS, Pinellas County and several other municipalities in Pinellas County utilize a Uniform Fine Schedule, dividing individual violations into separate classes with varying corresponding fines; and

WHEREAS, the Town Council finds that it is in the interest of the public's health, safety and wellness to uniformly apply its code of ordinances and relevant statutes and facilitate the enforcement thereof.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF KENNETH CITY, FLORIDA:

Section 1. The fines for individual violations of the Town's Code of Ordinances and other applicable laws shall be governed by the Schedule at the time of adoption of this resolution as appended here as **Exhibit A**.

Section 2. Any future revision to the Class Designation of any violation already existing at the time of enactment of this Resolution shall be done by future resolution of the Town Council.

Section 3. The clerk is hereby directed to circulate this Resolution to all Town Departments responsible for enforcing the Town's code provisions and citing violations thereof.

Section 4. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this ___ day of _____, 2020, by the
Town Council of the Town of Kenneth City, Florida.

ATTEST:

Mayor

Town Clerk

**TOWN OF KENNETH CITY
UNIFORM FINE SCHEDULE**

Please note that the Roman numerals after each entry indicate the class (I-V) in which the violation falls for purposes of assessing the appropriate fine, unless otherwise specified in the Town's Ordinances.

ADVERTISING & SIGNS:

■ *HANDBILLS:*

Unlawful distribution on private property (IV)
Unlawful distribution in a public place (IV)
Unlawful placing in or upon vehicles (IV)

■ *SIGNS:*

Erecting or maintaining a prohibited sign (III)
Erecting or maintaining unsafe signs (IV)
Erecting or maintaining misleading, false or fraudulent signs (IV)
Failure to procure required permit (IV)

ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES:

Beer and wine; unlawful sale of (I)
Closing hours; doing business in violation (I)
Unlawful consumption on premises (I)
Minors; employment of, sale to, presence on premises prohibited (I)
Packaged liquor; unlawful sale of (I)
Sales near churches or schools prohibited (I)
Sales to habitual drunkards or intoxicated persons prohibited (I)
Nudity in commercial establishment serving alcoholic beverages (I)
Open container violation (IV)

AMUSEMENTS:

Circuses, carnivals, etc.; failure to obtain permits and post bonds (IV)
Failure to obtain required permits (IV)
Hours of operation; conducting business in excess of (IV)

ANIMAL CONTROL & FOWL:

Cruelty to animals and fowl prohibited (II)
Dangerous dog attacking an animal or person (I)
Failure to comply with dangerous dog requirements (II) Dead animals; improper disposal of (IV)
Public nuisance (III)
Improper confinement of animal in estrus (III)
Interference with animal control officers prohibited (II)
Prohibited animals; unlawful keeping of (IV)
Rabies; improper handling of suspect animals (IV)
Rabies and quarantine violations prohibited (I)
Animal at large/Animal leas law violation (IV)
Licensing violation (IV) Pet dealer violation (IV)
Abandonment (II)
Animal left in unattended vehicle (II)
Failure to Remove Animal Waste (III)
Unlawful tethering of an animal (III)

BICYCLES:

Brakes; failure to have minimum required brakes (V)
Carrying articles prohibited (V)
License plates; failure to display (V)
License plates; removing, changing or mutilating prohibited (IV) Lights; failure to have required lights (V)
Parents' and guardians' responsibility; failure to exercise (IV)
Sales of bicycles; failure to report (IV)
Serial numbers or identification numbers; offenses involving (IV)
Sidewalks; violation of riding restrictions (V)
Helmet law v

BOATS, DOCKS, BEACHES & WATERWAYS:

■ *BOATS:*

Equipment; improper keeping of (IV)
Nets; unlawful use of (IV)
Permit required for sale and soliciting sale of bait (IV)
Reckless operation of watercraft prohibited (II)
Signs on docks, Boats or grounds; improper posting of (IV)
Spears or harpoons; unlawful use of (IV)
Trespass on docks or slips prohibited (IV)
Improper Operation of Boats on Town Lakes (IV)

■ *SEAWALLS:*

Failure to maintain and repair seawall and bulkheads (III)
Failure to comply with minimum standard requirements for the construction of seawalls and bulkheads (III)

■ *WATERWAYS:*

Abandoned vessels or watercraft prohibited (IV)
Bathing in boat channels prohibited (IV) Blocking channels prohibited (II)
Bow riding prohibited (IV)
Careless operation of vessels prohibited (V)
Debris; unlawful depositing of in waterways (IV)
Diving or jumping from bridges or piers prohibited (II) Dredging operations, prohibited during certain hours (IV) Fishing prohibited in specified areas (II)
Fishing; unlawful use of prohibited tackle (V)
Gasoline; improper transportation of (IV)
Hazardous vessels or watercraft prohibited (II)
Piers; unlawful operation of watercraft around (III)
Pumping; unlawful pumping of bilges or disposal of petroleum products (III)
Safety equipment; failure to have proper equipment (V)
Searchlights, horns and whistles; improper use of (V)
Speeds; excessive speed by watercraft prohibited (V)
Swimming and throwing trash; unlawful (V)
Water-ski regulations; violations of (V)
Watercraft prohibited in certain lakes (V)
Wharves; improper use of public wharves (IV)
Water and Navigator Control Authority Ordinance (I)
Failure to remove damaged or abandoned boat (IV)

BUILDINGS:

Glass doors; decals or other marking required (IV)
Mailboxes required (IV)

■ *MOVING BUILDINGS:*

Designation of moving routes required (III)
Failure to obtain required permit (III)
Failure to satisfy safety requirements (III)
Hours of moving; violation (III)
License; occupational license required all movers (III)
Size of building which may be moved; exceeding maximum (III)
Time within which move is to be made; exceeding allowed time (III)
Numbering doors of non-residential structures required (IV)
Numbering houses required (IV)

■ *POOLS:*

- Enclosure of swimming pools and fish ponds required (I)
- Maintenance of pool equipment and water quality (II)
- Prohibited use of property (III)
- Salvaged materials; utilization of prohibited (IV)
- Water preservation in connection with new developments required (IV)
- Failure to obtain necessary installation/building permit (II)

BUILDING AND CONSTRUCTION SAFETY:

Failure to comply with the requirements for:

- Standard Building Code (II)
- Standard Plumbing Code (II)
- Standard Mechanical Code (II)
- Standard Gas Code (II)
- National Electric Code (II)
- Life Safety 101 (II)
- Other local Codes pertaining to repair, construction, improvement, removal, maintenance, or demolition of buildings and property (II)

Failure to comply with any of the above when noncompliance is hazardous to the public (I)

BUSINESS REGULATIONS:

■ *GENERAL:*

- Failure to obtain all necessary certificates, licenses and permits (II)
- Fortune-telling for compensation and similar practices prohibited (III)
- Grading and labeling of perishable meats required (III)
- Impersonating the consumer division director or an inspector prohibited (III) Labeling of packages; violations of regulations (III)
- Landlords required to disclose profits made from furnishing utilities (III)
- Misleading packaging prohibited (III)
- Oil; furnace and stove oil to be sold by liquid measure only (III) Scales for check weighing prepackaged commodities required (III)
- Selling, offering for sale or keeping any commodity that has been ordered off sale, marked or tagged prohibited (III)
- Operating without a retail tobacco products dealer permit (III)

■ *ADVERTISING STANDARDS:*

- Advertising where additional purchases are required; violation of regulations (III)
- Complete purchase price required to be represented (III)
- Misrepresentation of merchandise, services and facilities prohibited (III)
- Misrepresentation as to nature of commodity or service prohibited (III)

Misrepresentation of price prohibited (III)
Wholesale; unlawful use of the term (III)

■ *AUCTIONS AND AUCTIONEERS:*

Descriptive tags required to be affixed to articles (III) False
bidders and cappers prohibited (II)
False representations as to origin of goods prohibited (III)
Misrepresentation of used articles prohibited (II)

■ *SALES:*

Improper conducting of (III)
Prohibited at certain hours and on specified days (III)
Prohibited in public ways (III)
Substitution of articles prohibited (II)
Failure to obtain garage sales permit (III)

■ *BARBER SHOPS & BEAUTY PARLORS:*

Failure to post inspections forms (III)
Failure to secure requisite licenses and permits (III)
Reuse or common use of soap, cosmetics and related substances prohibited (III)
Violation of regulations pertaining to cleanliness (III)

■ *CLOSING OUT SALES:*

Goods sold required to have been on inventory; replenishment of stock prohibited (III) Inventory
required to be filed (III)
Record of articles sold; failure to file (III)

■ *EMPLOYMENT AGENTS OR AGENCIES:*

Accepting fees for specified positions already filled prohibited (II)
Applicants; sending out without bona fide order prohibited (III)
Fees; failure to file and post schedule of fees (III)
Registration fees; violation of restrictions (III)
Fraudulent advertisements prohibited (III) Records;
failure to properly maintain (III)
Refund of expenditures to applicants required (III)
Soliciting termination of employment relationships prohibited (III)
Splitting or sharing fees prohibited (III)

■ *PAWNBROKERS, JUNK & SECONDHAND DEALERS:*

Arrangement of stock to facilitate inspection required (III)
Dealing with minors prohibited (III)
Junkyards required to be enclosed (III)

Register of transactions; failure to furnish copies to police (II)

■ *PROMOTERS:*

Co-mingling of funds prohibited (I)

Employment of unqualified solicitors prohibited (III)

■ *SOLICITORS:*

Character; solicitor required to be of good moral character (III)

Notice of change of address or employment required (III)

Registration required (III)

■ *MISCELLANEOUS OFFENSES NOT ENUMERATED UNDER BUSINESS
REGULATION ABOVE: CLASS IV*

CONSUMER PROTECTION:

■ *ADULT USE*

Unlicensed activity (II)

Failure to display license (II)

Failure to maintain required records (II) Failure
to provide records upon request (II)

Unauthorized name change (II)

■ *BINGO:*

Unlicensed activity (II)

Failure to display license (II)

Failure to establish a separate bank account for the proceeds of bingo (II)

Failure to maintain required records (II)

Failure to provide records upon request (II)

■ *CHARITABLE SOLICITATIONS:*

Failure to obtain the required permit (II)

False statement in connection with a solicitation (II)

Implying Town endorsement (II)

Commingling of contributions (II)

Soliciting during pending suspension or revocation (II) Transfer
or assignment of permit (II)

Solicitation to a private residence between during impermissible times (II)

Failure to possess and exhibit permit and authorization (II)

Concealing identity of organization (II)

Misrepresenting donations as tax deductible (II)

Failure to maintain required records (II)

Failure to surrender permit when required (II)

Failure to provide required records upon request (II)
Unauthorized representation of a charity (II)
Soliciting for individual without depository account (II) Failure
to honor timely request for refund (II)
Improper use of contributions (II)
Use of misleading name (II)
False representation by solicitor (II)
Withholding proceeds from sponsor (II)
Failure to display required information on contribution receptacle (II)

■ *MOVING ORDINANCE:*

Failure to provide information required in estimate (II)
Failure to provide estimate (I)
Failure to provide information required in service contract (II)
Failure to provide service contract (I)
Charges in excess of written estimate (I)
Refusal to relinquish household goods (I)
Failure to provide written inventory (II)
Failure to disclose liability coverage (I)

■ *PAIN MANAGEMENT CLINICS:*

Unlawful operation of a pain management clinic (I)

CONTRACTORS:

Advertising; unlawful advertising prohibited (II)
Certificates of competency required (II)
Insurance; contractors required to maintain liability insurance (II)
License; occupational license required (III)
License; display of occupational license required (III)
Signs of vehicles; standards and requirements (III)
Unlawful acts or omissions by contractors (II)
If hazardous to the public (I)

DRUGS & TOXIC SUBSTANCES:

Adulterated or misbranded drugs; sale of prohibited (I)
Advertising drugs; regulations and requirements (I)
Cannabis; possession of preparations containing cannabis prohibited (I)
Handling drugs under unsanitary conditions prohibited (I)
Prescriptions; failure to keep proper files and allow inspection (I)
Sales; unlawful sales of certain drugs and chemicals (I)
Sales; unlawful sales without prescriptions (I)
Use or sale of certain hazardous chemicals prohibited (I)
Withholding from sale articles believed to be in violation required (I)

ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT:

Inoperative vehicles (III)
Burning; open burning prohibited (IV)
Noise violation (I)
Smoke; emission of dense smoke prohibited (III)
Prohibited vehicles (III)
Improper outdoor storage (III)
Unlawful application of fertilizer (I)
Unlawful distribution of fertilizer (I)
Defacing public property or parks (III)
Failure to get tree removal permit (III)

EXPLOSIVES AND INFLAMMABLES:

Location; gasoline delivery devices not to be on sidewalks (II) Storage:
installation requirements for aboveground storage tanks (II) Permit
required for bulk storage (II)
Permit required for the storage of explosives (II)
Type, construction and design of storage tanks (II)

FIRE PREVENTION:

Alarms; false alarm reports prohibited (II) Certificate
of occupancy required (II)
Code; violations of Fire Prevention Code prohibited (II) Heaters;
portable oil heaters prohibited (II)
Interference with members of the fire department prohibited (II)
Orders; refusing to obey orders of fire officers (II)
Smoking or carrying of lighted objects in specified places prohibited (II)

FOOD & FOOD HANDLERS:■ *GENERAL:*

Failure to obtain all necessary certificates, licenses and permits (I)
Failure to withhold from sale food believed to be in violation of food regulations (I)
Handling of food under unsanitary conditions prohibited (I)
Ice; sale or distribution when unfit for human consumption prohibited (I) Impersonating
an officer of the health department prohibited (I)
Sale, manufacturing or possessing adulterated or misbranded food prohibited (I)
Sale of meats to which sulphurous acid has been added prohibited (I)
Cleanliness; machinery and fixtures required to be kept clean (I)
Garbage and waste; required to be kept in containers (I)
Peddling of fruits, vegetables, meats and fish; proper protection of food when conveyed through
streets required (I)
Refrigeration; sufficient working facilities required; regulations (I)
Re-service of food prohibited (I)
Ventilation; proper ventilation required for all ranges, stoves and ovens (I)

■ **PREMISES:**

Construction, maintenance and cleanliness regulation regarding walls, ceilings and floors; violation of regulation (I)
Grease traps and interceptors required and must be properly maintained (I) Toilet and lavatory facilities, regulations and requirements; violation of (I)
Ventilation, lighting and cleanliness regulations and requirements; violation of (I)
Vermin; premises required to be protected against vermin (I)
Water; ample hot and cold running water required (I)
Failure to submit grease trap and interceptor cleaning or pumping reports (I)

GARBAGE AND REFUSE:

■ **GENERAL:**

Burning of garbage or rubbish; incinerators; regulations and requirements (IV)
Permits required for garbage or rubbish burial (IV)
Unlawful accumulations of refuse prohibited (III)
Unlawful disposal of garbage, refuse or rubbish prohibited (III)
Use of unauthorized removal solid waste carrier (IV)

■ **COLLECTORS:**

Area between property lines and curbs to remain clean (IV) Departures from allowed methods of making collections and routes to travel prohibited (IV)
Time of container placement; violation of (IV)

■ **CONTAINERS:**

Adequate containers required; violations of approved specifications (III) Covers; containers required to be kept tightly covered (IV)
Locations of containers; violation of regulations (IV)
Underground installations prohibited (IV)
Garbage and other refuse required to be stored in containers (III)

HEALTH & SANITATION:

Burials; other than in authorized cemetery prohibited (II)
Mosquitoes; permitting premises to become a breeding place prohibited (II)

■ **RATS:**

Affording food or harborage for rats prohibited (II)
Buildings required to be freed of rat harborage (II)
Poultry and stock feed required to be kept in ratproof containers or in ratproof buildings (II)
Removal ratproofing prohibited (II)

HOUSING:

■ *GENERAL:*

Abatement of substandard or unsafe buildings required (I)

Placarding dangerous building against habitation required; removal of placards prohibited (I)

Violations of restrictions on furnishing utilities services to substandard dwellings (I)

■ *MINIMUM STANDARDS:*

Failure to meet minimum standard requirements for: Air

and water heating (II)

Cleanliness of dwelling units (III)

Cleanliness of plumbing fixtures (III)

Cleanliness of public area of multiple dwellings (III) Electric service (I)

Gas service (I)

Light and ventilation (II)

Maintenance (III)

Plumbing systems and equipment (I)

Space, use and location (III)

Storage of junk (III)

HOTELS, MOTELS & ROOMING HOUSES:

Failure to meet minimum standard requirements for:

Egress (III)

Light and ventilation (III) Space, use and occupancy (III) Toilet and bathing facilities (III)

LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS:

Drainage regulations violation (I)

Flood damage prevention regulations violation (I)

Floodplain management regulations violation (I) Site plan regulation; failure to obtain a permit (I)

Site plan regulation; failure to comply with a site plan permit (I)

Stormwater regulations violation (I)

Subdivision regulations violation (I) Wellfield

protection regulations violation (I)

PARKING, STORAGE OF VEHICLES

Parking in violation of disabled parking permit ordinance, Section 54-114 - \$250.00

Parking of a vehicle or recreational vehicle, as defined in the Town's code, exceeding the maximum size or weight dimensions (III)

Parking an unauthorized commercial vehicle overnight (IV)

All other parking and traffic violations pursuant to Chapter 54 - \$30.00

Parking or storing a vessel or water craft on an unpaved surface (III)

Parking or storing a vehicle on block(s) for more than 24 hours (III)

Parking or storing a vessel, water craft, or vehicle too close to right of way, property line, or residence building (III)

Parking or storing vessel or water craft off trailer (III)

Parking of unauthorized number of recreational vehicles, vessels or water craft trailers in front yard (III)

Parking a motor vehicle against the flow of traffic in a residential area (III)

Parking a motor vehicle, trailer, water craft, or vessel blocking the sidewalk (III)

Parking in a no parking lane (III)

Parking in unauthorized location (III)

PARKS, RECREATION AND PRESERVES:

Littering prohibited (V)

Performing prohibited acts in parks and preserves (IV)

Performing acts which require special permission without first obtaining such permission (IV)

RAILROADS:

Obstruction of public ways prohibited (I) Unlawful

speed prohibited (I)

SEWERS & SEWAGE DISPOSAL:

Connection to sanitary sewer and abandonment of private sewage disposal facilities required (I)

■ *DISCHARGE:*

Harmful, dangerous or nuisance wastes to sewer system prohibited (I) Untreated sewage or polluted waters to surface or groundwater, or in unsanitary manner prohibited (I)

Unauthorized discharge of waste or septic tank waste to sewer system prohibited (I)

Routing of surface runoff sources or groundwater to sewer system prohibited (I)

■ *PERMITS AND INSPECTIONS:*

Permits prior to connection or alteration to sewer system required (I) Industrial

user permit, pretreatment, payment of industrial surcharge, and/or industrial sampling points required (I)
Periodic reports from all federal categorical industrial users required (III)
Inspection before construction or alteration of facilities required (III) Access for Sewer Department/DER/EPA to property authorized (II)
Septic tanks abandoned and declared hazardous to be rendered inoperative (II)

TOWN OF KENNETH CITY POLICE DEPARTMENT:

SOLID WASTE:

Flow control ordinance violation (I)
Removal of recyclable material from collection centers (III)
Solid waste disposal facility ordinance violation (I)
Unacceptable disposal and removal of hypodermic needles and/or syringes (I)
Unlawful disposal (I)

STREETS & SIDEWALKS:

Debris; leaving building construction debris in public ways prohibited (III)
Illumination; objects in streets required to be illuminated (III)
Mailboxes; maintenance of mailboxes in rights-of-way prohibited (III)
Obstruction of public ways or buildings prohibited (III)
Permit required for building, repairing or removing structures in or on street (III)
Permit required for doing business on streets or sidewalks (III)
Permit required for changing surface area of street (III) Roadway solicitation ordinance violations (III)
Violations of standards, regulations and requirements pertaining to curbs, sidewalks and public benches (IV)

■ *PARADES:*

Parking on parade routes; regulation of required (III)
Permit required for parades (III)
Possession of parade permit required (III)
Public conduct during parades; regulation of (III)

UTILITIES:

Access to premises supplied with water required (IV) Connections to city water system; violation of regulations (III)
Lines; overhead utility lines within the rights-of-way of interstate highway and other freeways prohibited (IV)
Metering of city gas required (IV)
Meter required prior to connection with city water (IV) Meter; use of city water without a meter prohibited (III)
Meter; devices preventing the full metering of water prohibited (III)
Sprinkling during unauthorized hours or on unauthorized days prohibited under certain

circumstances (II)

VEGETATION:

- Adhering to upland buffer requirements (I)
- Adhering to upland preservation area requirements (I)
- Failure to remove trees or branches in danger of falling upon a public way or property of another (IV)
- Maintaining trees and shrubs in utility easements prohibited (IV)
- Maintaining minimum landscape requirements (I)
- Minimum height of branches overhanging public ways; failure to comply (IV)
- Failure to maintain lawn, yard or lot in compliance with height and other maintenance requirements (IV)

■ **TREES:**

- Protection of trees during construction activities required (I)
- Protection of trees while filling land required (I)
- Removal of trees without a permit prohibited (I)

MISCELLANEOUS ORDINANCE VIOLATIONS:

All zoning violations not herein specifically provided shall be deemed to be Class III offenses.

All other violations not herein specifically provided shall be deemed to be Class V offenses except that failure to comply with licensure and permit requirements in section 379.354, Florida Statutes, shall be assessed a \$50 fine pursuant to section 379.401, Florida Statutes.

Fines may be doubled for a second offense and for each subsequent offense thereafter.

**TOWN OF KENNETH CITY UNIFORM
FINE SCHEDULE FOR ORDINANCE VIOLATIONS**

CONTESTED

UNCONTESTED

	FINE	COSTS*	TOTAL		FINE	COSTS*	TOTAL
CLASS I	\$205.00	\$58.00	\$263.00	CLASS I	\$205.00	\$13.00	\$218.00
CLASS II	\$180.00	\$58.00	\$238.00	CLASS II	\$180.00	\$13.00	\$193.00
CLASS III	\$130.00	\$58.00	\$188.00	CLASS III	\$130.00	\$13.00	\$143.00
CLASS IV	\$105.00	\$58.00	\$163.00	CLASS IV	\$105.00	\$13.00	\$118.00
CLASS V	\$ 80.00	\$58.00	\$138.00	CLASS V	\$ 80.00	\$13.00	\$ 93.00

***COSTS INCLUDE:**

\$3.00 ADDITIONAL COURT COST CLEARING TRUST FUND, 938.01, Fla. Stat.

(Not assessed in uncontested cases)

\$2.00 CRIMINAL JUSTICE EDUCATION FOR LOCAL GOVERNMENT, 938.15, Fla. Stat.

(Costs shall not be assessed if no court appearance or for cases where adjudication of guilt is withheld.)

\$40.00 COST RECOVERY, § 34.045 (1)(b), Fla. Stat.

\$10.00 FILING FEE RECOVERY, § 34.045 (1)(c) Fla. Stat.

\$3.00 TEEN COURT, §938.19, Fla. Stat. (Section 46-34 Pinellas County Code)

EXH. A